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: i iv e miles from its mouth, and the only seaport in
ORTSMOUTH, N. H., S{fuates grtl tl;;1512%?1?31;&;‘;erérghéfd and with a population of b}lt'llttle more than Een
New Fampshire, thfoag ﬁift lacg;; in this country to be settled by colonists from Grf:’at Brltal‘l‘l, I_)al\rlcli{'l‘}%omgbm;
thousand, was on:: ohax]/?ng‘logated and built houses at what he called ** Panngwayf zthe Little Harbor >’ o
and his little &)a;o}vjv merely Odionne’s Point, in the town of Rye —in the sprmghq 1623,
the early historian, an ilgrims on Cape Cod. Small and relatively unimportant though it now i fter i 1 t
after the landing of the Pl}%rl% ion, whose very sites had been unexplored by white men a century after its settlemen f
scores of cities throughout t eh né)lo{lizing period and up to the Revolutionary War, one of the most unportant seaports k?
Portsmouth was throughout the c 1d. TIts shipbuilding and shipping iuterests were extensive for the times, and it was the
the British colonies in the new Worof the province of New Hampshire up to the time the royal authority was defied and
residence of the royal governoer ice-regal authority and display it was of course a centre of fashion, and the trade and
overthrown. /s the centr§ o1 VICel %entered here. And yet, although the 2soth anmversary”of. the incorporation of
wealth of the province aéso tig% nyame (it had previously been known as “ Strawberry Bank’) is past. and its 3o00th
Portsmouth as a ';30‘?'1 hunco(fcr)uial settlement is not far away, the national census of Igoo was the first one to place the
;g;:;ﬁiisg;yofa ihi ci':; 1cs)f Portsmouth as high as ten thousand.

less than three years
s, in comparison with

i edly the preservation throu
To this very slowness of ngEWtSdni?Ztl;fo:IS)(lzlrelEee(’i’ utlill(zilc'zusbc: att};acts F:risitors from the newer, larger and more actively
of so much of the old-time atspeC ’Ia‘lhe thickly settled area of the city has at least doublea_ \.Vltll.lll fifty vears, although the
progressive cities of theblcocllln 1?11 it; the city has a good water service, owned by the municipality ; the streets are kept in
population has not dou de Vl‘{ lichted every night and all night by electricity ; and electric railway cars run through several
very good condition, an e Plg'us loop”” and the ‘* Christian shore loop,” and to Rye and the Hamptpus and to Efxete‘r;
of the streets, around the ?10111 earEIy morn until late at night there is easy and close connection with the electric rail-
and by steam ferr.y which ¥unsthrrou h Kittery to York Beacli, and through Eliot to S_outh Berwick and Dover. And whpn
ways across the river rummllg 1ectrgic fire alarm, in place of the simultaneops clanging of all the churc_h bells of the city
a number is tapped OHt byntl; eever ublic spirited citizen at the top of his voice, as was the methog of indicating the
and the shouting of ﬁref yars ayop fire apparatus drawn by galloping horses.appear on the streets in a few moments.
outbreak of a fire a very few yevationfi and the business activity evident in the business section — for a large country traffic
But with all these modern 1111110 ason of summer travel it is the shopping centre for the summer visitors at Hampton, Rye
comes here, ljnd ddilrllengc’)ftslﬁozels‘—— the visitor from inland districts who Il)ass throughthe streets of the older sections find
Kittery, York and Isle of d by the architecture of the buildings, their surroun Ings, etc., most impressive.
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less height than either of the other two. These big, three-story houses, of which there are a large number, have about
them an air of solidity, wealth aud respectability that makes the average beholder very desirous of owning one or two of
thenm. So an old house with a high pitch roof may be set down as having been built before 1730 ; a gambrel roofed house,
between that date and the Revolution; and a three-story house with flat roof, between the revolutionary period and the
middle of the nineteenth century. In most cases this will prove correct. Practically all the brick buildings in the city
were erected after the great fires of 1802, 1806 and 1813, by which a large part of the town was destroyed.

The people of New Hampshire boast that no armed enemy, other than Indians, ever trod the soil of their State; but
some of the most stirring and important incidents preceding and leading up to the Revolutionary War occurred in Portsmouth
and its vicinity, and no place has more localities and buildings of historic interest, a few of the buildings having been marked
with bronze tablets by a patriotic society.

A point of special interest to many visitors is St. John's Episcopal Church. The church, although the oldest one in the
city -still nsed as such, is 1ot very old, as buildings in Portsmouth go, having been built in 1808 ; but its historical interest
is very great, it being the successor of Queen’s Chapel, which was built in 1732, and so named in honor of Queen Caroline,
consort of King George II. The queen presented the new chapel with the beoks for the altar and pulpit, silver communion
service and christening basin, and two heavy mahogany chairs, in one of which President Washington sat when he attended
service at St. John’s in 1789. A bell, captured at Louisburg, Cape Breton, by Sir William Pepperrell’s expedition in 1745,
was presented to the chapel, by the officers of the New Hampshire regiment ; and, several times recast and augmented by
the addition of more metal, now hangs in the belfry of the present church. A baptismal font of African porphyry, captured
by Col. John Tafton Mason from the French at Senegal, Africa, in 1758, and believed to have been taken by the French
from a Mohammedan mosque, was presented to the chapel by Col. Mason’s daughter in 1761. All these articles were saved
when the old St. John’s church — the parish had been incorporated by that name in 1791 — was burned in December, 1806.

Although Portsmouth has no so-called siuinmer hotels, and from its position is unsuitable for them, it does have a large
summer trade ; the hotel patrous and cottagers of the neighboring resorts, Newcastle, Rye, Kittery, York and the Isles of
Shoals making it their headquarters for shopping, and enlivening and often throngiug the business streets with their hand-
some teams and automobiles, The merchants of the city recognize that this trade is of value, aud cater for it.

New Castle has a summer hotel widely known as one of the largest and most finely furnished of any along the New
England coast, several small hotels and boarding houses, many cottages for rental, and a number of cottages generally
occupied by their owners during the warm season. Formerly, and from the first settlement up to a comparatively recent
date, it was distinctively a fishing town ; in recent years it has become distinctively a summer resort town, The town being
entirely surrounded by water, the summer temperature is usually a few degrees lower than it is farther inland ; and there
are neither railroad trains nor trolley cars to disturb the peace and quietude of the inhabitants. At the northeast extremity
of the island is Fort Constitution, in colonial days called Fort William and Mary, whiclh in December, 1774, six months
before the battle of Lexington and four months hefore the battle of Bunker Hill, was captured by a party of men led by
Capt. Thompsou and Jolin Langdon of Portsmouth, (the latter of whom was afterward several times governor of New
Hampshire), and all the powder carried off ; and which was again visited the following uight by a party led by John
Sullivan of Durham, (who also later became governor of the State), who removed all the light cannon. It is claimed that
this was the first overt act of armed rebellion against the authority of the crown, and this was a deliberate attack upon a
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indentations of the river, and many of the streets crook and turn in an extraordinary manner, affording walks and drives of
rare beauty but few facilities for racing. Everywlhere close to the waters of the harbor, boating, fishing and smooth water
bathing are the favorite diversions, and during the yachting season it is rarely that one or miore cruising yaclits are not
anchored in Pepperrell’s Cove. An air of thrift, prosperity and progress that is most pleasing pervades the town everywhere,
but much attention has of late years been paid to the preservation of whatever of the ancient landmarks remain. The
former homes of the Pepperrells, of the Cuttses and Gerrishes, and other families prominent iu the town and province affairs
before the Revolution, are now viewed with much interest and veneration ; and the old cemeteries, with their many quaint
inscriptions have many visitors. Old Fort McClary, which the govermment after the civil war started to enlarge into a
fortress and then abandoned, can be strolled over at will at any hour of the day or night, it having been cordemned as a
fortification. It is one of the places that all visitors to the town feel bound to inspect before dep rti g and the little
blockhouse perched up on the highest elevation within the old fort, and intended to serve as a citadel should the tort ever he
stormed, is ‘‘ taken’’ by kodakers hundreds of times every season. Not a sign of a soldier’s uniform is ever seen in the
old fort now, although several heavy cannon were mounted there during the Spanish war The navy yard, to which
visitors are freely admitted every day in the vear, including Sundays and holidays, is a place of never ¢nding interest and has
thousands of volunteer inspectors every summer.

York’s summer resort business, which had its practical beginning when the Marshall House at York Harbor opened its
doors for summer patronage, has now attained great proportions. Where at that time on the harbor shore were a few farms
and farm houses is now a large and wealthy summer colony. ~New streets have been made and old roads improved, other
hotels and large and high class boarding houses built, and many fine cottages for rental, while scores of large and costly
buildings for the summer occupany of the owners have been erected. A village precinct has been established, and under it
many improvements carried out while others are projected. TUnitarian and Episcopal churclies have been built, the old
churches of the town being Congregational or Baptist, and the York Country Club, composed of summer residents of the
Harbor, is one of the most noted sunimer organizatious in this section, with an exceptionally fine clublhouse and extensive
grounds. At Long Beach a long row of cottages has been created, separated from the broad sand beach by the highwav and
the tracks of the electric railway. Most of these cottages are of moderate size and cost, many of them being for rental, while
others are occupied by their owners every summer. Several large hotels that were formerly at the beach were at different
times destroyed by fire. The promontory, at the end of which is the Nubble, which is between Long Beach and York
Beach, is dotted along both its edges with summer homes, whose numbers are annually increasing ; and at York Beach is
quite a village of large and small hotels, cottages and business establishnients. and a Catholic church, and the terminal
station of the York Harbor & Beach steam railroad and the Portsmouth, Dover & York electric street railway. The cottage
colony is gradually extending itself from the beach to York Cliffs about three miles distant, a large hotel, the Passaconaway,
having for several years been successfully conducted at the Cliffs. The shore line of York is as a whole more broken and
bluff than that of Rye, and more rocky, but there is abundant room and desirable situations for hundreds of sunimer hoines
yet, and it may safely be assumed that the town has not yet nearly reached the summit of its prosperity as a sununer resort,

The Isles of Shoals, seven miles offshore to the southeast of the entrance to Portsmouth harbor, the seat of an extensive
fishing business at the time New Hampshire was settled nearly 300 years ago, and which supported a quite large resident
population up to a comparatively recent date, are now known only as a summer resort. Tlere are two large hotels, the
Oceanic, on Star Island, and the Appledore House, on Appledore, and a number of cottages on each island. The ancient



stone church on Star Island is the most noticeable reminder of the former town of Gosport and the former life of the
islands, though many graves of unknown decedents, marked only by rough stones bearing no inscriptions, can be seen on
Star by persons who know how to look for them, and the foundations of several scores of houses that were abandoned more
than a century ago are plainly visible on the southerly slope of Appledore. The annual summer meetings of the American
Unitarian Association have been held at the Shoals for several years, on which occasion services are regularly held for a
week in the old church, and services are conducted in it through the season by clergymen of different denominati
at the hotels. Boating and fishing, sea bathing, pure air, a temperature more even than that of the mainland, and magnifi-
cent storm effects whenever there is a storm, are the attractions the islands offer the sumuner guest. A steamer runs
between Portsmouth and the islands every day, including Sundays, during the season making close connection with train‘s
of the Boston & Maine railroad.

ons staying

Their proximity to each other, and the facilities for i1_1ter-communica'gion', make of Rye, New Castle, Kittery and York
practically one summer-resort district, with Portsmouth as its centre and distributing point. The roads throughout are in
sumier easy for teams, auto-cars or bicycles, and the distance not too long for a pleasurable drive or ride : aund electric ¢
run from one end to the other of the district, over well laid lines at short intervals from early morning ’to late at ni a}ﬁ
throughout the season of beach travel. Party excursions from one beach to another are frequent, and the base ball and golf
teams of the several resorts are often seen on each other’s grounds. The Isles of Shoals are in a district and a class of t%ei
own, although fishing, sailing and motor-boat parties from the shore resorts frequently pass a few hours at the islands - ancll—
less frequently parties from the islaud hotels take a trip i to Newcastle, Kittery or York. Next to Rye is North Ham t
with its Little Boar's Head summer colony of wealthy cottagers; and then comes Hampton Beach, which, thou h itPhOn
hotels, boarding houses and a good number of cottages, and is the most “1ive}y” of any summer resort in thisg se o
differs from the places previously named in that it caters espec1ally. for the transient patronage which comes in the morni
and leaves in the evening, its brass bands and Sunday concerts, daily sporting eveunts, etc., giving it a ‘¢ sporty ”’ ch ng
which the other resorts sedulously avoid. As a whole the section of sea-coast between Hampton River, N H. aud O aracter
Harbor. Me., offers many and varied attractions for the summier visitor, whether his means be limitéq 'Or 'abund gotnqmt
whatever his tastes; and that the limit of its popularity has not yet been reached is demonstrated by the succaez; au(cil
increases of each succeeding year. : S an
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